
U.S. DiSTRICT COURT 
Southern District of Georgia. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT Filed in Open Court 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 1 

AUGUSTA DIVISION 

DFri !tI (rfr 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

V. 

TYRON LARON COOKS, 

Defendant. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

INDICTMENT NO.: 1: 12-cr-00254 

VIO: 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1); 924 
Possession of a Firearm and 

Ammunition by a Convicted Felon 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

STATUTES CHARGED: 

	

Count 1: 	18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1); 924 
Possession of a Firearm and 

Ammunition by a Convicted Felon 

COUNT PLEADING TO: 

	

Count 1: 	18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1); 924 
Possession of a Firearm and 
Ammunition by a Convicted Felon 

Penalty: 

Not more than ten (10) years imprisonment; a fine of not more than 8250,000.00, or 
both; a term of supervised release of not more than three (3) years; a $100.00 special 
assessment. 

If Defendant is deemed to be an armed career criminal under 18 U.S.C. 924(e): 
Not less than fifteen (15) years or more than life imprisonment; a fine of not more 
than $250,000; not more than five (5) years supervised release; and a $100 special 
assessment 

Element of Offense: 

1. The Defendant knowingly possessed a firearm in or affecting interstate or 
foreign commerce; and 

2. Before possessing the firearm, the Defendant had been convicted of a 
felony—a crime punishable by imprisonment for more than one year. 
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PLEA AGREEMENT 

C. Troy Clark, Assistant United States Attorney, and Mukti Patel attorney for the 

defendant, pursuant to the provisions of Rule 11, Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, as amended, 

have, with the authorization of the undersigned defendant, heretofore entered into discussions with 

a view towards reaching a pretrial conclusion of the charges pending in the Indictment styled above, 

and a Plea Agreement has been reached by said parties in the following respects: 

GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 

1. Upon the defendant's entry of a plea of guilty to the offense charged in Count 1 

of the Indictment, his fill compliance with all promises made hereinafter as apart of this agreement, 

and his adherence to all representations and understandings recited hereinafter, the attorney for the 

government will do the following: 

a. will not object to a recommendation from the probation officer that the defendant 

receive a 2-point reduction for acceptance of responsibility under the provisions of Chapter Three, 

Part E of the Sentencing Guidelines, and where applicable under the U.S.S.G. § 3E 1.1(b), will file 

a motion for an additional 1-point reduction for acceptance of responsibility, provided the defendant 

truthfully admits the conduct comprising the offense of conviction, has fully complied with the terms 

of pretrial release, if applicable, has not engaged in criminal conduct subsequent to arrest or initial 

appearance in this matter, and truthfully admits or does not falsely deny any additional relevant 

conduct for which the defendant is accountable under the United States Sentencing Guidelines; and 

b. If defendant cooperates, will advise the Court at sentencing of the extent and 

value of any information, cooperation, or assistance in the investigation and prosecution of others 
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provided by the defendant, and to consider whether such cooperation qualifies as "substantial 

assistance" pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3553(e) and U.S.S.G. §5K1 .1 or Fed. R. Crim. Pro. 35. 

If the defendant's cooperation is completed prior to sentencing, the government 

agrees to consider whether such cooperation qualifies as "substantial assistance" pursuant to 

18 U.S.C. §3553(e) and U.S.S.G. §5K1.1 and under the policies of the United States Attorney's 

Office for the Southern District of Georgia warrants the filing of a motion for downward departure 

from the applicable sentencing guideline range and departure below any applicable statutory 

mandatory minimum sentence. If the defendant's cooperation is completed or likely to be completed 

subsequent to sentencing, the government agrees to consider whether such cooperation qualifies as 

"substantial assistance" pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3553(e) and Rule 35, Fed. R. Crirn. Pro. and under 

the policies of the United States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Georgia warrants the 

filing of a motion for downward departure from the applicable sentencing guideline range and 

departure below any applicable statutory mandatory minimum sentence, within one year of the 

imposition of sentence. 

In either case, the defendant understands that the determination as to whether the 

defendant has provided "substantial assistance" rests solely with the government. If the government 

files a motion for downward departure pursuant to this agreement, the government reserves the right 

to either take no position as to the appropriate amount of departure and defer entirely to the Court, 

or, in its discretion, to make any recommendation it deems appropriate respecting the degree of 

departure. 

The defendant fully understands that whether or not the sentencing court 

decides to depart downward below a guideline range or statutory minimum sentence, or 
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reduce the defendant's sentence, as well as the extent of any such downward departure or 

reduction, is completely within the sentencing court's discretion, and that the Court is not 

bound to accept any recommendation by the government. 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE DEFENDANT 

2. THE DEFENDANT AGREES: 

a. to plead guilty to Count 1 of the Indictment; 

b. LIMITED WAIVER OF APPEAL: 

Understanding that federal law and rules provide for an appeal by a defendant of the 

conviction and sentence under certain circumstances, as a part ofthis agreement and in consideration 

for the government's promises hereunder, to the maximum extent permitted by federal law, the 

defendant voluntarily and expressly waives the right to appeal the conviction and sentence and the 

right to collaterally attack the conviction and sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, including 

a § 2255 proceeding, on any ground, except that: the defendant may file a direct appeal of his 

sentence if it exceeds the statutory maximum; and the defendant may file a direct appeal of his 

sentence if, by variance or upward departure, the sentence is higher than the advisory sentencing 

guideline range as found by the sentencing court. The defendant understands that this Plea 

Agreement does not limit the Governments right to appeal, but if the Government appeals the 

sentence imposed, the defendant may also file a direct appeal of the sentence. 

c. if he cooperates, agrees to cooperate truthfully and completely at all times; 

COOPERATION PROVISION 

THE DEFENDANT AGREES: 
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(1) To provide fall, complete, and candid cooperation with federal, state, and 

local authorities by following all reasonable requests of law enforcement agents, which may include, 

in addition to a full disclosure of all criminal activities of which the defendant has knowledge and 

a full and truthful answer to any question put to him by law enforcement officers, the affirmative 

gathering of evidence under the direction of law enforcement authorities (such as, but not limited 

to, wearing or operating recording or transmitting devices for the monitoring of conversations 

between the defendant and others, and the disclosure and relinquishment of any documents or 

physical items of evidentiary value in the defendant's possession or held for the defendant by others; 

(2) To testify truthfully and completely before any grand jury, trial jury, or 

in any proceeding preliminary or ancillary thereto, to which the information provided under this 

agreement may pertain, and to waive any privileges which the defendant may have with regard to 

such testimony. 

(3) That for the purpose of complying with the terms of this cooperation 

agreement, the defendant will meet with law enforcement agents and/or counsel for the government 

at times and places of their choosing, as may be necessary to discharge the defendant's obligations 

under this agreement, and in connection therewith the defendant waives any right to the presence of 

his counsel during such meetings. 

(4) That the defendant is required at all times to give complete, truthful, and 

accurate evidence and testimony when called upon to do so by the government or another defendant; 

That the defendant is not called upon by this agreement nor any other to implicate any particular 

individual as to any particular illegal activity, nor to "make a case" against anyone; That the 

defendant's benefits under this agreement are conditioned solely upon his cooperation and 
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truthfulness, and are IN NO WAY conditioned upon the outcome of any trial, grand jury, or other 

proceeding; 

(5) That if there is any failure to completely fulfill the obligations of this 

agreement, then the government is thereby released from any commitment to honor its promises 

hereunder. Thus, should the defendant knowingly give false, incomplete, or misleading testimony 

or information, or conceal material information, the government will be free to: prosecute the 

defendant for all violations of the criminal laws the defendant has committed, including those which 

the defendant disclosed as a part of the defendant's cooperation under this agreement; to use against 

the defendant in any prosecution or sentencing any statements the defendant made during the course 

of cooperation under this agreement; to seek and recommend maximum sentences and all 

applicable sentence enhancements on any conviction obtained; to seek forfeiture of any and all 

properties subject thereto; and to prosecute the defendant additionally for perjury, false statement, 

and obstruction of justice. (If the parties disagree as to whether a breach of this agreement has 

occurred, the defendant agrees that the matter will be submitted to the court for resolution on a 

preponderance of the evidence standard, with the moving party bearing the burden of proof.) 

(6) That the defendant must promptly turn over to government authorities or 

disclose the location of any evidence pertinent to the matter under indictment or matters disclosed 

as a part of the defendant's cooperation, such as, but not limited to, papers, documents, recordings 

(audio and video), photographs and any other physical items. 

(7) The defendant agrees to waive all rights under the Speedy Trial Act, if 

necessary, to delay sentencing until the completion of substantial portions of the defendant's 

cooperation, so as to provide the sentencing court with all relevant information. 

Case 1:12-cr-00254-JRH-BKE   Document 27   Filed 04/18/13   Page 6 of 14



3. The defendant also understands that in accordance with United States v. 

Booker, the district court, while not bound to apply the federal sentencing guidelines, must 

consult those guidelines and take them into account to formulate a reasonable sentence. 

4. DEFENDANT'S REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT AND FURTHER 

OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

a. FACTUAL BASIS 

The defendant admits to the conduct underlying Count I of the Indictment which 

charges that on or about October 17, 2012, in Richmond County, within the Southern District of 

Georgia, the defendant, did knowingly possess, in and affecting commerce, a Heckler and Koch, 

Model HK4, .22 caliber pistol, serial number 43087, and eight live rounds of.22 caliber ammunition, 

all of which previously had been shipped or transported in interstate or foreign commerce in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 922(g)(1) and 924, and that the defendant's 

admissions and guilty plea to this charge constitute proof as to that count. 

Defendant further admits that prior to October 17, 2012, defendant had been convicted ofone 

or more felonies, crimes punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year, including: 

Violation of Georgia Controlled Substances Act (Sale of Cocaine), committed onMarch 22, 
2002, convicted on January 17, 2003, in the Superior Court of Richmond County, Georgia, 
Case No. 2002 RCCR 00977; 

Violation of Georgia Controlled Substances Act (Sale of Cocaine), committed on April 3, 
2002, convicted on January 17, 2003, in the Superior Court of Richmond County, Georgia, 
Case No. 2002 RCCR 00977; and 

Robbery, committed on October 4, 2005, convicted on January 25, 2007, in the Superior 
Court of Richmond County, Georgia, Case No. 2005 RCCR 01695. 

The defendant understands and agrees that nothing in this agreement shall abrogate 
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the duty and right of the government to bring all sentencing facts to the attention of the sentencing 

court, and the defendant further agrees that the government shall not be bound to make any 

recommendation under this agreement if to do so would directly contradict facts relevant to the 

offense conduct or the defendant's prior conduct or criminal history, which first come to the attention 

of the government, or are confirmed as true, only after the signing of this agreement. 

The defendant understands that the Court is not a party to this agreement, that the 

government can only make recommendations which are not binding on the Court, and that after the 

entry of the defendant's guilty plea, the defendant has no absolute right to withdraw the plea. Thus, 

the Court is free to impose any sentence authorized by law up to the statutory maximum sentence. 

The defendant further advises the Court that the defendant understands that the U. S. 

Probation Office will prepare a presentence investigation report for the Court, and that the U.S. 

Probation Office will consider all of defendant's conduct related to the offense to which he is 

pleading, as well as the defendant's criminal history, and that these facts will be considered by the 

Court in determining the defendant's sentence. The defendant understands that the offense level and 

criminal history category determined by the United States Probation Office and the Court may differ 

from that estimated or projected by defendant's counsel or the United States Attorney. 

The defendant advises the Court that the defendant understands that if the 

relevant conduct, guideline sentencing range, or sentence imposed by the Court is more or 

greater than the defendant expected or, in the case of relevant conduct, is found to be more 

extensive than the defendant has admitted to, the defendant will still have no absolute right 

to withdraw his guilty plea. 
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b. FINES, ASSESSMENTS, AND FORFEITURES 

The defendant understands that any assessments imposed pursuant to 18 U.S.0 

§ 3013 by the Court at sentencing must be paid on the date of sentencing. 

The defendant understands that if a fine or restitution is imposed by the Court at 

sentencing, or if the United States is pursuing the forfeiture of any property in which the defendant 

has an interest, whether by administrative, civil, orjudicial proceeding, the defendant shall meet with 

a member of the Debt Collection Unit of the United States Attorney's Office on the day of sentencing 

and complete a written personal financial statement setting forth the defendant's assets and liabilities. 

The defendant further understands that by completing the financial statement, the defendant is 

representing that it is true and accurate to the best of the defendant's information, knowledge and 

belief, and agrees to make an honest, good faith effort to pay said fine as directed by the financial 

litigation section of the United States Attorney's Office. 

c. FOTA AND PRIVACY ACT WAIVER: The defendant retains all discovery 

rights to documents pertaining to the investigation and prosecution of this case as may by law apply 

to any post-conviction litigation as to which the right to proceed has not otherwise been waived or 

relinquished by the defendant in this agreement or otherwise; HOWEVER, notwithstanding any right 

on the part of the defendant to post-conviction litigation, the defendant, as a part of this agreement 

and in consideration of the promises by made the government hereunder, waives all rights, whether 

asserted directly or by a representative, to request or receive from any department or agency of the 

United States any record pertaining to the investigation or prosecution of this case under the 

authority of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, or the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 

i-c 

Case 1:12-cr-00254-JRH-BKE   Document 27   Filed 04/18/13   Page 9 of 14



§ 552a, and all subsequent amendments thereto. 

5. DEFENDANT'S FURTHER REPRESENTATIONS TO THE COURT: 

a. The defendant represents to the Court that the defendant has had the services of 

an attorney the defendant believes to be competent; that the defendant has met with said attorney on 

a sufficient number of occasions and for a sufficient period of time to discuss the defendant's case 

and receive advice; that the defendant has been truthful with his attorney and related all information 

of which the defendant is aware pertaining to the case; that the defendant and defendant's attorney 

have discussed possible defenses, if any, to the charge in the indictment, including the existence of 

any exculpatory or favorable evidence or witnesses, discussed the defendant's right to a public trial 

by jury or by the Court, the right to the assistance of counsel throughout the proceedings, the right 

to call witnesses in the defendant's behalf and compel their attendance at trial by subpoena, the right 

to confront and cross-examine the government's witnesses, the defendant's right to testify in the 

defendant's own behalf, or to remain silent and have no adverse inferences drawn from the 

defendant's silence; and that the defendant, with the advice of counsel, has weighed the relative 

benefits of a trial byjury or by the Court versus a plea of guilty pursuant to this Agreement, and has 

entered this Agreement as a matter of the defendant's free and voluntary choice, and not as a result 

of pressure or intimidation by any person. 

b. The defendant further represents to the Court that the plea agreement as set forth 

herein and the plea to be entered by the defendant is the result of prior discussions between the 

attorney for the government and the attorney for the defendant, conducted with the defendants 

authorization, knowledge and consent; that this plea agreement contains the entire agreement and 

understanding between the government and the defendant; and that the defendant has no other 
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agreements, understandings, or deals with any person other than those set out in this plea agreement, 

that is, the defendant advises the Court that the defendant's entire understanding of this Plea 

Agreement is completely set forth in writing in this document. 

c. The defendant represents to the Court that he has been advised of the nature of 

the charge to which the plea of guilty is to be offered, of the maximum possible penalties provided 

by law, as set forth above, and that by entering a plea of guilty the defendant gives up all of the rights 

set out in paragraph "a" above, gives up any defenses to the charge, and understands that there will 

not be a further trial of any kind. The defendant further understands that in entering a plea of guilty, 

the Court will ask questions about the offense to which the plea is entered. The defendant 

understands that he will be under oath and on the record in answering those questions, and that the 

defendant's answers may later be used against him in a criminal prosecution for perjury or false 

statement if those answers are not truthful. 

(Plea Agreement continues on following page) 
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6. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

If the defendant at any time fails to comply with any of the terms of this agreement 

in any way, the government shall be released from its promises herein. This includes, but is not 

limited to, any attempt by the defendant to oh struct justice, for example, by influencing the testimony 

of a witness or committing new crimes prior to Defendant's sentencing by the court. 

This f day of &lea 	2013. 

EDWARD J. TARVER 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

4 ( V- 
dT'roark 
Assistant United States Attorney 
Georgia Bar No. 811674 
P.O. Box 2017 
Augusta, GA 30903 
(706) 826-4520 

- 

Nancy C. Greenwood 
Deputy Chief, Criminal Division 
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I have read the foregoing Plea Agreement, consisting of 12 pages including this page, and 

I understand what it says and means, and by my signature hereunder I swear or affirm under penalty 

of perjury that the matters and facts set forth therein are true, and accurately and correctly state the 

representations that have been made to me by my attorney and government agents and/or 

prosecutors, and accurately set forth the terms and conditions of the plea agreement that has been 

reached by my attorney on my behalf and with my permission. 

Mukti Patel 
Attorney for the Defendant 

TyTonCooks 
Defendant 

L 	-L3 
Date 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

AUGUSTA DIVISION 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

V. 

TYRON LARON COOKS, 

Defendant. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

INDICTMENT NO.: 1:12-cr-00254 

VIO: 18 U.S.C. § 922(g)(1); 924 
Possession of a Firearm and 

Ammunition by a Convicted Felon 

ORDER 

The aforesaid Plea Agreement, having been considered by the Court in conjunction 

with the interrogation by the Court of the defendant and the defendant's attorney at a hearing on the 

defendant's motion to change plea and the Court fmding that the plea of guilty is made freely, 

voluntarily and knowingly, it is thereupon, 

ORDERED that the plea of guilty by the defendant be and it is hereby accepted and 

the foregoing Plea Agreement be and it is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

This 	day of 	 ,2013. 

(YES I)4SMJCT JUDGE 
DISTRICT OF GEORGIA 
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